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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
Members of the Board 
Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board: 
 
Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Employees Group Insurance Division, a division of the Office 
of Management and Enterprise Services and department of the State of Oklahoma (EGID), as of and for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise EGID’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the Employees Group Insurance Division, as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
(Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of EGID and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of EGID of the Office of Management Enterprises Services and 
Department of the State of Oklahoma are intended to present the financial position, the changes in financial 
position and cash flows of only that portion of the State of Oklahoma that is attributable to the transactions of 
EGID. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of Oklahoma as of 
December 31, 2021, and 2020, the changes in its financial position, or its cash flows for the years ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about EGID’s ability to continue as a going 
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concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information 
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of EGID’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about EGID’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information related to pension and other post-
employment benefits and claims development be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2022 on 
our consideration of EGID’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 



that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of EGID’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering EGID’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
June 29, 2022 
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Office of Management and Enterprise Services - Employees Group Insurance Division (EGID) basic 
financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America for governmental entities and insurance enterprises where applicable. The primary 
purpose of EGID is to provide group health, dental, life, and disability insurance for employees of state 
agencies, school districts, and other governmental units of the State of Oklahoma as set forth in Title 74 of 
the Oklahoma Statutes. EGID, an enterprise fund of the State of Oklahoma, is a division of the Office of 
Management and Enterprise Services (OMES). OMES provides central services to other state agencies in the 
areas of budget and finance, technology, human capital management, real estate/facilities and fleet 
management. 

The three financial statements presented within the basic financial statements are as follows: 

Statement of Net Position—This statement presents information reflecting EGID’s assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Net position represents the amount 
of total assets and deferred outflows of resources less total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The 
statement of net position is classified as to current and noncurrent assets and liabilities. For purposes of the 
basic financial statements, current assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities with immediate 
liquidity or which are collectible or becoming due within twelve months of the statement date. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position—This statement reflects EGID’s operating 
revenues and expenses, as well as non-operating revenue during the year. The major source of operating 
revenue is premium income and the major sources of operating expenses are health, dental, life, and 
disability benefits. The change in net position for an enterprise fund is similar to net profit or loss for a 
private sector insurance company. 

Statement of Cash Flows—The statement of cash flows is presented on the direct method of reporting, 
which reflects cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and investing activities. Cash 
collections and payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash for 
the fiscal year. 
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Financial Highlights 

The management of EGID offers readers of EGID’s basic financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the entity for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019. 

2021 vs. 2020
Change

2021 2020 2019 Amount

Cash and investments 417,200,676$   429,993,204$   329,207,311$   (12,792,528)$      
Premiums receivable—net 48,502,330       36,842,357       46,886,033       11,659,973          
Other current assets 116,463,637     113,314,084     97,121,030       3,149,553            

           Total current assets 582,166,643     580,149,645     473,214,374     2,016,998            

Office equipment—net 1,552,024         28,709               373,733             1,523,315            
Net Pension and OPEB asset 4,045,587         147,798             125,825             3,897,789            

           Total assets 587,764,254     580,326,152     473,713,932     7,438,102            

Deferred outflows of resources—Pension 595,349             1,719,616         421,113             (1,124,267)           
Deferred outflows of resources—OPEB 96,155               122,318             78,720               (26,163) 

           Total deferred outflows 691,504             1,841,934         499,833             (1,150,430)           

Total assets and deferred outflows 588,455,758$   582,168,086$   474,213,765$   6,287,672$          

December 31

2021 vs. 2020
Change

2021 2020 2019 Amount

Claims liabilities 108,033,000$    125,072,000$    112,381,000$    (17,039,000)$     
Disability liabilities (current only) 2,477,000          2,331,000          2,228,000          146,000              
Premium deficiency reserves 48,847,000        2,154,000          4,852,000          46,693,000        
Other current liabilities 71,483,911 60,454,567 48,030,968 11,029,344 

           Total current liabilities 230,840,911      190,011,567      167,491,968      40,829,344        

Pension and OPEB liabilities 485,603              3,297,231          944,450              (2,811,628)         
Other noncurrent liabilities 10,374,000 7,543,000 14,382,000 2,831,000 

           Total liabilities 241,700,514 200,851,798 182,818,418 40,848,716 

Deferred inflows of resources—Pension 4,184,644          15,369                231,515              4,169,275          
Deferred inflows of resources—OPEB 261,490 176,032 135,433 85,458 

           Total deferred inflows 4,446,134 191,401 366,948 4,254,733 

Invested in capital assets 1,552,024          28,709                373,733              1,523,315          
Restricted 4,045,587          - - 4,045,587          
Unrestricted 336,711,499 381,096,178 290,654,666 (44,384,679) 

           Total net position 342,309,110 381,124,887 291,028,399 (38,815,777) 

Total liabilities, deferred

December 31
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2021 vs. 2020
Change

2021 2020 2019 Amount

Premium revenue 1,067,640,576$   1,097,920,668$   1,086,401,037$   (30,280,092)$          
Other operating revenue 5,314,285            5,640,463            2,985,310            (326,178) 

           Tota l  operating revenues 1,072,954,861     1,103,561,131     1,089,386,347     (30,606,270)            

Incurred cla ims  expense 1,048,629,807     996,403,449        1,027,682,086     52,226,358              
Change in premium deficiency 
  reserves 46,693,000          (2,698,000)           (2,327,000)           49,391,000              
Adminis trative and cla ims  
  process ing expense 49,304,197          49,437,851          47,780,571          (133,654) 

           Tota l  operating expenses 1,144,627,004     1,043,143,300     1,073,135,657     101,483,704            

           Operating income (loss ) (71,672,143)         60,417,831          16,250,690          (132,089,974)          

Net investment income 32,856,366          29,678,657          38,778,465          3,177,709                

           Change in net pos i tion (38,815,777)         90,096,488          55,029,155          (128,912,265)          

Net pos i tion, beginning of year 381,124,887        291,028,399        235,999,244        90,096,488              

Net pos i tion, end of year 342,309,110$      381,124,887$      291,028,399$      (38,815,777)$          

Year Ended December 31

EGID’s total assets for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by approximately 1.3% from the 
previous year, where there was an increase of approximately 22.5% in 2020. Cash and investments 
decreased by approximately $12.8 million or 3.0% during 2021 primarily due to timing of premium 
collections while 2020 showed an increase of approximately $100.8 million or 30.6% 

In 2021, EGID earned approximately $5.0 million in interest and dividend income, experienced $11.4 million 
in realized gains and $17.3 million in unrealized gains, and paid $810,016 in investment expenses for a net 
investment gain of $32.9 million. In 2020, EGID earned approximately $4.6 million in interest and dividend 
income, experienced $6.5 million in realized gains and $19.3 million in unrealized gains, and paid $671,366 
in investment expenses for a net investment gain of $29.7 million. EGID’s investment allocation at 
December 31, 2021 is comprised of approximately 39% fixed income securities, 42% equities, and 19% cash 
equivalents, while at December 31, 2020 the allocation was comprised of approximately 41% fixed income 
securities, 32% equities, and 27% cash equivalents. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, premiums receivable increased from the prior year by 
approximately $11.7 million primarily due to the timing of premium payments received from EGID’s largest 
employer group and one smaller group. In the prior year, premiums receivable decreased approximately 
$10.0 million, primarily due to the timing of premium payments received from EGID’s largest employer 
group. 

In 2021, other current assets increased approximately $3.1 million primarily due to an increase of 
$17.5 million in Medicare Part-D plan reinsurance receivable and a decrease in pharmacy rebate receivable 
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of $12.9 million.  Pharmacy rebates experienced an increase in revenue while reinsurance and Coverage Gap 
Discount Program (CGDP), components of the Medicare Part-D plan, each remained comparable to 2020. 
The increase in other current assets during 2020 of approximately $16.2 million occurred primarily due to an 
increase of $16 million in pharmacy rebate receivable, an increase of $1.1 million in the CGDP receivable and 
a decrease in the Part D reinsurance receivable of $2.9 million. Pharmacy rebates and CGDP each 
experienced an increase in revenue while reinsurance decreased during 2020. 

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2021 increased approximately $40.8 million or 20.3% from December 31, 
2020 as a result of a $46.7 million increase in premium deficiency reserves, an increase of $4.3 million in 
administrative expenses payable which was offset by a decrease of $7.5 million in claims payable and a 
$2.8 million decrease in pension liabilities.  Total liabilities as of December 31, 2020 increased approximately 
$18.0 million or 9.9% from December 31, 2019 as a result of a $6 million increase in claim liabilities, an 
increase unclaimed property of $4.7 million, an increase in pension and OPEB liabilities of $2.4 million, an 
increase in payable for investment purchases of $3.6 million, an increase in premiums payable to health 
management organizations of $3.1 million and a $2.7 million decrease in premium deficiency reserves.  

A premium deficiency is required to be recognized if the sum of expected claims costs and all expected claim 
adjustment expenses exceeds related premiums and anticipated investment income.  At December 31, 
2021, a premium deficiency liability of approximately $45.0 million was recorded for the health and dental 
plan.  The life and disability plans also recorded a premium deficiency for $3.7 million and $138,000, 
respectively.  At December 31, 2020, a premium deficiency liability of approximately $1.7 million was 
recorded for the life plan and $482,000 was recorded for the disability plan, while no premium deficiency 
was necessary for the health and dental plans. 

Premium revenue decreased for 2021 by approximately $30.3 million primarily due to a decrease in 
membership of approximately 3,500 members.  The health and dental plan’s premium revenues decreased 
by $33.4 million which was offset by an increase life premium revenue of $3.2 million. In 2020, EGID saw an 
overall increase in premium revenue of approximately $11.5 million due to an increase in participation.  For 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, EGID earned approximately $5.3 million and $5.6 million, 
respectively, in other operating income, which consisted primarily of risk adjustment fee income. 

Incurred claims comprise approximately 91.6% and 95.5% of EGID’s total expenses in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. Changes in premium deficiency reserves are not considered in the calculation. For the year 
ended December 31, 2021, total incurred claims increased by approximately $52.2 million or 5.2% from the 
prior year. In 2020, total incurred claims increased by approximately $31.3 million or 3.0% over the prior 
year. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, health and dental claim costs increased by approximately 
$67.0 million or 7.1% due to unfavorable claims experience from COVID-19 and a return of services that 
were deferred in 2020.  For the year ended December 31, 2020, health and dental claim costs decreased by 
approximately $39.9 million or 4.0% due to favorable claims experience. 

In 2021 and 2020, life claim costs decreased by approximately $3.9 million or 8.3% and $8.7 million or 
22.4%, respectively. Disability claim costs for 2021 increased approximately $782,000 or 141.2% from the 
prior year. Disability claim costs for 2020 decreased approximately $75,000 or 11.9% from the prior year. 

Administrative expenses decreased approximately $134,000 or 0.3% in 2021 from 2020.  Administrative 
expenses increased by approximately $1.7 million in 2020 from 2019 primarily due to an increase in 
professional services resulting from new initiatives in 2020 for member navigation and telemedicine 
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services. Administrative expenses make up approximately 4.3% and 4.7% of EGID’s total expenses in 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

EGID experienced a decrease in total net position of approximately $38.8 million, or 10.2%, for the year 
ended December 31, 2021. For 2020, there was an increase in total net position of approximately 
$90.1 million, or 31.0%. 

During 2021, the Health and Dental program experienced a decrease in net position of approximately 
$34.7 million, or 9.1% from the prior year. The decrease was primarily the result of the recognition of a 
premium deficiency for 2021 of $45.0 million which was offset by operating income of $10.3 million.  During 
2020, the Health and Dental program experienced an increase in net position of approximately 
$95.7 million, or 32.0% from the prior year. The increase is a result of decreased claim costs due to overall 
favorable medical claims experience, an over-performance of pharmacy rebates by the Pharmacy Benefit 
Manager (PBM) and positive investment returns.  

The Life program experienced a decrease in net position of approximately $9.4 million or 51.5% in 2021 and 
a decrease of approximately $11.4 million or 165.7% in 2020. 

The Disability program experienced an increase in net position of approximately $5.2 million or 26.7% in 
2021, and an increase in net position of $5.8 million or 41.8% in 2020. 

Economic Conditions 

As a large public employer plan, total annual claim costs are less volatile than those of small employer group 
plans. While various factors continue to apply upward pressure on medical and prescription drug costs, 
management of EGID is positioned to monitor the changing healthcare environment and implement 
initiatives to minimize the impact of increased cost trends. Many factors such as the proliferation of 
expensive specialty medications and an aging population will continue to be significant drivers of healthcare 
costs. The insurance industry monitors healthcare costs by establishing a percentage of cost increases 
known as “trend.” Trend is the forecast change in health plans’ per capita claims cost determined by 
insurance carriers, managed care organizations, and third-party administrators. Many factors influence 
trend, including the following: 

• Price inflation
• Deductibles and copayments
• Cost-shifting
• Utilization increases due to aging, product promotion, and improved diagnostic services
• The availability and use of more expensive drug therapies
• Government mandated benefits and other legislative changes
• Advances in medical technologies

• According to Aon Consulting Inc, EGID’s consulting actuarial firm, the 2021 national healthcare trends
for plans similar to EGID’s HealthChoice High plan was 12.5% for medical only, 6.5% for pharmacy only,
or 11.0% combined. The national trend for Medicare supplement plans was 5.0% for medical only, 6.5%
for pharmacy only, or 6.0% combined. In 2021, EGID’s pharmacy only (before rebates) trend was 11.7%.
EGID’s active and pre-Medicare retiree medical only trend was 10.9% resulting in a 11.2% combined
medical and pharmacy trend. The Medicare supplement plan trend was 10.2% for medical only resulting
in 10.3% combined medical and pharmacy trend. These trends are adjusted for plan design and provider
contracting changes during the measurement period.
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Since annual premium rates are set in August of the previous year, the rate setting process applies trend 
factors for claims incurred through April. The medical trend applied by EGID’s actuaries for calculating 2021 
rates was 4.0% for active employees, pre-Medicare retirees and Medicare retirees. The medical trend 
applied by EGID’s actuaries for calculating 2020 rates was 4.0% for active employees and pre-Medicare 
retirees and 3.5% for Medicare retirees. The prescription drug trend used for setting 2021 was 9.5% for 
active employees, pre-Medicare retirees as well as Medicare retirees.  The dental trend used for setting 
2021 rates was 3.5% and 3.0% in 2020. 

EGID’s investment portfolio experienced positive returns during 2021. Performance for EGID’s total 
investment portfolio was 9.0% for the calendar year, driven primarily by a 27.0% return from the equity 
portfolio as global growth staged a recovery in 2021 with vaccine rollouts, ultra-easy monetary policy, fiscal 
stimulus and pent-up consumer demand.  In 2020, EGID experienced an 8.4% positive return for the 
calendar year, driven primarily by a 16.6% return from the equity portfolio as investors largely shrugged off 
any macroeconomic concerns and instead focused on expectations for improved global economic growth. 

In the commercial health insurance industry, “medical loss ratio” (MLR) measures the percentage of each 
premium dollar that is spent on providing healthcare to their customers versus administrative costs. The 
medical loss ratio is a basic indicator of an insurer’s efficiency in delivering services. The ACA establishes a 
minimum loss ratio of 80% for the individual and small group health insurance segments, and 85% for the 
large group segment. EGID’s MLR was 97.4% in 2021 and 89.6% in 2020. 

While there is continual uncertainty on the long-term impact of COVID-19, medical claims experience in 
2021 includes COVID-19-related elements from multiple COVID-19 waves (such as testing costs, vaccine 
costs, COVID-19 treatment costs and suppression of other claims). Even with the 2021 COVID-19-related 
impacts, the reduction in total claims in 2020 put EGID reserves in a healthy financial position to absorb such 
impacts in 2021. COVID-19 is expected to reach an endemic state, which means that it will recur over time 
and become an integral part of costs and trend patterns going forward rather than a one-time deviation. 
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
  Cash and cash equivalents 87,857,210$    135,010,579$ 
  Investments 329,343,466    294,982,625    
  Receivables:
    Interest and dividends receivable 863,089            846,312            
    Unsettled investment sales 169,491            13,313              
    Premiums—net of allowance of $7,955,000 and $6,782,000
      at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 48,502,330      36,842,357      
    Pharmacy rebate receivable 66,321,492      79,196,044      
    Other—net 49,109,565 33,258,415 

           Total current assets 582,166,643 580,149,645 

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
  Office equipment 4,866,359        3,423,779        
  Less accumulated depreciation (3,314,335) (3,395,070) 

           Office equipment—net 1,552,024        28,709              

  Pension asset 3,669,688        
  Net OPEB asset 375,899 147,798 

           Total noncurrent assets 5,597,611 176,507 

           Total assets 587,764,254 580,326,152 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
  Pension amounts 595,349            1,719,616        
  OPEB amounts 96,155 122,318 

           Total deferred outflows of resources 691,504 1,841,934 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 588,455,758$ 582,168,086$ 
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Policy and contract claim liabilities 108,033,000$  125,072,000$  
  Disability 2,477,000         2,331,000         
  Premium deficiency reserve 48,847,000       2,154,000         
  Premiums due to health maintenance organizations and
    other insurers 25,144,476       23,540,868       
  Payable for investment purchases 4,097,993         4,562,882         
  Other accrued liabilities 42,241,442       32,350,817       

           Total current liabilities 230,840,911     190,011,567     

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Policy and contract claim liabilities 5,657,000         1,822,000         
  Disability 4,717,000         5,721,000         
  Net pension liability 0 2,812,537         
  Total OPEB liability 485,603            484,694            

           Total noncurrent liabilities 10,859,603       10,840,231       

           Total liabilities 241,700,514     200,851,798     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

PENSION AMOUNTS 4,184,644         15,369               

OPEB AMOUNTS 261,490            176,032            

           Total deferred inflows of resources 4,446,134         191,401            

NET POSITION

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS 1,552,024         28,709               

RESTRICTED 4,045,587         -

UNRESTRICTED (Note 2(f)) 336,711,499     381,096,178     

           Total net position 342,309,110     381,124,887     

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
  NET POSITION 588,455,758$  582,168,086$  
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

OPERATING REVENUES: 
  Premium revenue 1,067,640,576$ 1,097,920,668$ 
  Other operating revenue 5,314,285 5,640,463 

           Total operating revenues 1,072,954,861 1,103,561,131 

OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Incurred claims expense 1,048,629,807   996,403,449       
  Change in premium deficiency reserve 46,693,000         (2,698,000)          
  Administrative and claim processing 49,304,197 49,437,851 

           Total operating expenses 1,144,627,004 1,043,143,300 

OPERATING (LOSS)/INCOME (71,672,143)       60,417,831         

NONOPERATING REVENUE—Net investment income 32,856,366 29,678,657 

           Change in net position (38,815,777) 90,096,488 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 381,124,887 291,028,399 

NET POSITION, End of year 342,309,110$    381,124,887$    

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Premiums col lected 1,057,509,551$    1,102,488,109$    
  Premiums col lected on behal f of heal th maintenance organizations  and
    other insurers 316,088,075         294,252,953         
  Payments  col lected from Centers  for Medicare and Medica id Services 1,175,596             3,497,649             
  Risk adjustment premium col lected 5,379,050             5,505,853             
  Benefi ts  pa id (1,065,731,202)     (1,005,735,889)     
  Premiums pa id to heal th maintenance organizations  and other insurers (317,167,682)        (289,024,517)        
  Payments  to employees  for services (9,318,431)            (9,634,256)            
  Payments  to suppl iers  for goods  and services (31,336,673)          (33,922,679)          
  Other operating cash received (pa id) 6,393 (64,352)                 

           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi ties (43,395,323)          67,362,871           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Acquis i tion of capi ta l  assets (1,615,727)            -       

           Net cash used in capi ta l  financing activi ties (1,615,727)            -       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchases  of investments (335,697,806)        (209,115,821)        
  Proceeds  from sa les  and maturi ties  of investments 329,582,572         189,627,964         
  Investment income received 3,972,915             3,886,967             

           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi ties (2,142,319)            (15,600,890)          

           Net change in cash and cash equiva lents (47,153,369)          51,761,980           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 135,010,579         83,248,598           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year 87,857,210$         135,010,578$       

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
  (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating income (loss ) (71,672,143)$        60,417,831$         

  Adjustments  to reconci le operating income (loss ) to net cash provided by
    (used in) operating activi ties :
    Depreciation 92,412 345,025                
    Change in operating assets  and l iabi l i ties :
      Premium receivable (11,659,973)          10,043,676           
      Prepaid premiums 29,690 137,534                
      Pens ion and OPEB assets/l iabi l i ties (6,709,417)            2,374,755             
      Deferred inflows  of resources 4,254,733             (175,547)               
      Deferred outflows  of resources 1,150,430             (1,342,102)            
      Other receivables (2,976,598)            (16,343,508)          
      Cla im reserves (13,204,000)          7,313,000             
      Disabi l i ty reserves (858,000)               (1,358,000)            
      Premium deficiency reserves 46,693,000           (2,698,000)            
      Premiums due to heal th maintenance organizations  and other insurers 1,603,608             3,112,316             
      Other l iabi l i ties 9,860,935             5,535,891             

           Tota l  adjustments 28,276,820           6,945,040             

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (43,395,323)$        67,362,871$         

See accompanying notes  to bas ic financia l  s tatements . 
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 

1. DESCRIPTION OF EGID

The Employees Group Insurance Division (EGID) is a non-appropriated division of the Oklahoma Office
of Management and Enterprise Services (OMES), an enterprise fund of the State of Oklahoma and is a
special-purpose state and local government body created by statute to engage solely in business-type
activities. EGID funds are held in trust, and from the funds, EGID administers, manages, and provides
group health, dental, life, and disability insurance for active employees and retirees of state agencies,
school districts, and other governmental units of the State of Oklahoma (the State). EGID is self-insured
and is financed through premiums collected from employers and employees. EGID retains a legal
obligation to establish a trustee relationship whereby EGID’s funds are held for the ultimate benefit of
those who obtain insurance from EGID. EGID provides insurance to all statutorily defined eligible
employees, dependents, and retirees.

The following brief description of EGID is provided for general information purposes only. Participants
should refer to Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 1301 et seq. as amended, for more
complete information.

In accordance with Title 74, EGID maintains three separate programs, the Health and Dental program,
the Life program, and the Disability program. There is no statutory restriction that would prevent assets
accumulated in one program from paying benefits due from another program.

EGID is overseen by a seven-member board, which comprises four members appointed by the
governor, one member appointed by the speaker of the House of Representatives, one member
appointed by the president pro tempore of the Senate, and the Oklahoma Insurance Commissioner or
his designee.

(a) General

In 1968, EGID was formed by the State Legislature to provide group health, dental, and life benefits
to participants of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) and active
employees of the State. Subsequently, other groups became eligible for participation, including
persons covered under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA),
survivors, and certain local government employees. COBRA allows temporary continuance of
insurance coverage under certain circumstances. Survivors are individuals who were covered
eligible dependents of a participant in EGID at the time of the participant’s death. EGID was created
by the State Legislature and could be abolished by the same body.

In 1978, EGID became self-insured. Beginning in 1985, participants were given the option of
electing health coverage from certain health maintenance organizations (HMOs). Plans similar to
HMOs provide dental coverage for those participants who elect to participate in them (DMOs). In
1986, the State added a self-insured disability program administered by EGID.
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In 1989, participants of the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma (TRS) and active employees 
of school districts became eligible to enroll in EGID (educational participants). The educational 
participants receive the same health and dental coverage options provided to state and local 
governmental participants. Life coverage was made available to active educational participants 
beginning July 1, 1991. Disability coverage is not available to educational participants. 

Effective July 1, 1993, the Oklahoma State Employee Benefit Council (EBC) began contracting with 
HMOs and DMOs on behalf of state employees to provide health and dental coverage for those 
participants who elect such coverage. 

In 1994, EGID began using the trade name HealthChoice. 

Effective January 1, 2006, EGID’s self-funded plan HealthChoice became a Medicare Part D 
Prescription Drug Plan pursuant to the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and 
Modernization Act of 2003. 

In 2012, pursuant to House Bill 3053 and House Bill 3079, various agencies including EGID 
(formerly, the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board (OSEEGIB)) were 
consolidated as divisions within the Office of Management and Enterprise Services (formerly, the 
Office of State Finance). EGID’s duties were transferred to the Director of OMES and the newly 
created Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board (OEIBB). Only the administrative 
functions of EGID were consolidated. The EGID funds continue to be held in trust and managed 
pursuant to state law for the benefit of its members. 

Effective November 1, 2013, EGID and the Employee Benefits Department (formerly, EBC) were 
further consolidated under the Human Capital Management Division (HCM) of OMES and EGID 
became a department within OMES. 

On January 17, 2017, EGID became a division of OMES. With this, EGID assumed responsibility for 
contracting with commercial health (HMO), dental (DMO), and vision benefit plans. 

(b) Premiums and Participants

The health, dental, life, and disability benefits for governmental participants are funded by monthly
premiums paid by the State, local governmental units, OPERS, and individuals. The health, dental,
and life benefits for educational participants are funded by monthly premiums paid by school
districts, the TRS, and individuals. A participant may extend coverage to dependents for an
additional monthly premium based on the coverage requested.

Premiums remitted to EGID on behalf of active state employees and their dependents for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are reported gross of a fee retained by Employees Benefits
Department (EBD). This fee, which was approximately $4,296,000 and $4,379,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, is included in administrative expenses in the
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, premiums for local government, education, and inactive participants who have
elected an HMO for health coverage or DMO for dental coverage are collected by EGID and
remitted to the HMO or DMO carrier net of an administration fee retained by EGID. This fee, which
was approximately $2,930,000 and $2,790,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, is included as an offset to administrative expenses in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position. The premium related to HMOs, DMOs, and vision plans was
approximately $318,771,000 and $292,137,000 for 2021 and 2020, respectively, and, as EGID only
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acts in an agency capacity, the premiums collected on behalf of HMOs, DMOs, and vision plans are 
not reflected in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

Pursuant to the authority granted by Oklahoma Statute, EGID has the authority to establish and 
change HealthChoice premium rates for the members, employers, and other contributing entities 
each year. An outside actuarial consultant advises EGID regarding changes in premium rates. If 
premium rates are changed, they generally become effective at the beginning of the next calendar 
year. Each HMO, DMO, and vision plan determines its own premium rates. 

At the time of premium payment, the risk of loss due to incurred benefit costs is transferred from 
the participant to EGID. If the assets of EGID were to be exhausted, participants would not be 
responsible for EGID’s liabilities. Based on this, EGID acts as a public-entity risk pool for the State of 
Oklahoma.  

At December 31, 2021, EGID’s self-funded health plan HealthChoice provided health coverage to 
116 state agency divisions with approximately 21,000 primary participants (not including 
dependents), 578 educational entities with approximately 55,000 primary participants, 296 local 
government entities with approximately 8,000 primary participants, and 36 other groups, which 
include the governmental and educational retirement systems, COBRA, and survivors, with 
approximately 33,000 primary participants. Approximately 56,000 dependents participated in 
HealthChoice as well. In addition, EGID collected and remitted premiums for approximately 30,000 
primary participants and 15,000 dependents who were covered by HMOs. These counts are 
provided for health coverage only. 

At December 31, 2020, EGID’s self-funded health plan HealthChoice provided health coverage to 
116 state agency divisions with approximately 22,000 primary participants (not including 
dependents), 577 educational entities with approximately 55,000 primary participants, 306 local 
government entities with approximately 8,000 primary participants, and 36 other groups, which 
include the governmental and educational retirement systems, COBRA, and survivors, with 
approximately 35,000 primary participants. Approximately 57,000 dependents participated in 
HealthChoice as well. In addition, EGID collected and remitted premiums for approximately 28,000 
primary participants and 15,000 dependents who were covered by HMOs. These counts are 
provided for health coverage only. 

All state agencies in Oklahoma are required to offer to their active employees the coverage 
selections offered by EBD. All eligible education or local government entities may elect to 
participate in EGID. Any education entity or local government entity, which elects to withdraw from 
offering EGID as an insurance option may do so with 30 days written notice and must withdraw 
both its current and former employee participants. 
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Coverage 

A summary of available coverage and eligible groups for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020 is as follows: 

Local
State Education Government

Employee Employee Employee OPERS TRS COBRA

Health x x x x x x
Dental x x x x x x
Life x x x x x
Disability x
Medicare
  supplement x x x x

(c) Benefits

A provider Network arrangement is available for health and dental benefits. According to this
arrangement, Network providers agree to accept amounts for covered services that do not exceed
the charges allowed by EGID. Therefore, the Network provider can only expect to receive payment
from the participant for the charges allowed by the Network agreement.

HealthChoice offers the following types of insurance coverages:

High Option, Basic Option, and High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) options for non-Medicare
participants

• High and Basic Plans have alternatives based upon tobacco-free attestations. If a member
cannot complete the tobacco-free attestation or one of the reasonable alternatives described,
the member will automatically be enrolled in the HealthChoice High Alternative Plan or Basic
Alternative Plan as appropriate. The annual deductible and maximum out-of-pocket limits for
the Alternative plan will be higher than the standard options;

• High and Low Option Medicare Supplement plans;

• Pharmacy benefits;

• Dental Coverage;

• Term life coverage; and

• Disability income protection coverage.

Non-Medicare Health Plans 

The health plans for non-Medicare participants have the following features: 

• Calendar Year Deductible;
• Copayments;
• Coinsurance; and
• Calendar Year Out-of-Pocket Maximum.
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High Option/High Option Alternative 

Deductible 

No member must contribute more than the individual deductible. Once the individual deductible is 
met, the member shares the cost of services with HealthChoice by paying coinsurance. A family 
deductible applies when three or more family members are covered and can be met by any 
combination of the family members. Once the family deductible is met, coinsurance will begin for 
everyone. 

High Plan High Alternative Plan 

Individual deductible $750 Individual deductible $1,000 
Family deductible $2,000 Family deductible $2,750

Copayments 

Service Copay

General physician office visit (network general practitioners, internal medicine
  physicians, OB/GYNs, pediatricians, physician assistants and nurse practitioners) 30$    
Urgent care (urgent care visits at a network urgent care facility) 30      
Specialist office visit (network specialist providers) 50      
Emergency department (network or non-network visit; waived if the patient is
  admitted to the hospital or if death occurs prior to admission) 200    
Non-network inpatient admission (non-network hospital/facility admissions;
  patient is subject to balance billing) 300    
Preventive services when rendered by a participating network provider 

The fixed amount a participant must pay for certain services. These apply before the deductible, 
but do not count towards deductible.  Copays  do apply towards meeting participant out-of-pocket 
maximum. 

Coinsurance 

Once the deductible is met, coinsurance applies based on network status. Participant is responsible 
for the cost of all non-covered services, regardless of network status. 

Coinsurance Network Non-Network

Member 20% of allowable amount 50% of allowable amount**

HealthChoice 80% of allowable amount 50% of allowable amount

** Plus, any difference between amount billed by provider and allowable amount. 
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Out-of-Pocket Maximum 

No member contributes more than the individual maximum. Once the individual maximum is met, 
HealthChoice then pays 100% of the allowed amount for that person. A family maximum applies 
when three or more family members are covered and can be met by any combination of the family 
members. HealthChoice then pays 100% of the allowable amounts for covered services for 
everyone on the plan. 

High Plan High Alternative Plan

Network Individual $3,300 Network Individual $3,550
Network Family $8,400 Network Family $8,400
Non-Network Individual $3,800 Non-Network Individual $4,050
Non-Network Family $9,900 Non-Network Family $9,900

The following charges do not count toward meeting the out-of-pocket maximum and do not qualify 
for 100% payment after the out-of-pocket maximum is met: 

• Amounts above HealthChoice allowable amounts.

• Non-network copays.

• Non-covered services or charges.

• Amounts above maximum benefit limitations—Some services have an annual cap on the dollar
amount or the total number of visits that will be covered. After the annual limit is reached, the
member must pay all associated health care costs for the remainder of the calendar year.

• No lifetime maximum per member.

Basic/Basic Alternative Plans 

The Basic options do not have copayments except for pharmacy charges and for non-network 
inpatient hospital admissions. The plans provide 100% First Dollar Coverage of allowable fees for 
covered medical services for each covered plan member. Preventive services do not apply to the 
First Dollar Coverage. The member then pays 100% of the deductible. Once the deductible is 
reached, the member and HealthChoice each pay 50% of allowable fees ($4,000 for an individual, 
$8,000 for a family of two, $9,000 per family of three or more) up to the maximum out of pocket 
expense (MOOP). HealthChoice reimburses allowable fees at 100% once the member has reached 
the MOOP. The MOOP does not include charges for non-covered services and balance billing 
charges from non-network providers. Preventive care services are covered at 100 percent of 
allowable fees and are not subject to the Plan’s First Dollar Coverage. Pharmacy deductibles and 
MOOPs are separate from medical. 

• For the Basic Plan the First Dollar Coverage is $500 per individual and the annual deductible is
$1,000 ($1,500 per family)

• For the Basic Alternative Plan, the First Dollar Coverage is $250, and the annual deductible is
$1,250 ($1,750 per family).
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High Deductible Health Plan 

The HealthChoice HDHP option is a qualified, high deductible health plan that can be used in 
combination with a Health Savings Account. The HealthChoice HDHP has a combined medical and 
pharmacy deductible ($1,750 for an individual or $3,500 for a family of two or more) that must be 
met before any benefits are payable. That does not include preventive charges which are covered 
at 100% of allowable fees when utilizing a network provider. After the deductible is met, the 
member is responsible for the same copayments and coinsurance percentages as the High Option 
Plan. There is a network MOOP of $6,000 per individual or $12,000 per family of two or more after 
which HealthChoice pays 100% of allowable fees for covered services from a network provider. The 
MOOP does not include charges for non-covered services and balance billing charges from non-
network providers. 

Tobacco Free Attestation 

To remain enrolled in the HealthChoice High Option Plan or Basic Plan, the member must attest 
that the member and any covered dependents are tobacco-free by completing an attestation as 
part of the annual Option Period enrollment process. If the member cannot complete the tobacco-
free attestation because the member or any covered dependent is not tobacco-free, the member 
can still qualify for the High Option or Basic Option Plans by providing proof of an attempt to quit 
using tobacco through a prescribed process involving the Oklahoma Tobacco Helpline and Alere 
Wellbeing, or by providing a letter from the participant’s doctor indicating it is not medically 
advisable for the individual to quit tobacco. HealthChoice High Deductible Health Plan does not 
require a tobacco free attestation to be completed. 

HealthChoice Select Program 

The HealthChoice Select program is available to participants and provides specified medical services 
at no cost to the member. If a participant has one of the qualifying Select procedures done at a 
participating Select facility for that procedure, there is no copay, deductible or coinsurance applied. 
High Deductible Health Plan members must meet their annual deductible before they are eligible to 
have any costs waived (unless the service is considered preventive). 

Pharmacy Benefits 

Medications are categorized as generic, preferred, non-preferred, preferred specialty, or non-
preferred specialty. 

High Option, High Alternative, Basic, and Basic Alternative Plans. There is a $100/individual or 
$300/family pharmacy deductible. After this deductible is met, and when purchasing generic 
medications from a network provider, the member is responsible for up to a $10 copayment for up 
to a 30-day supply or up to a $25 copayment for a 31–90 day supply of medication. For up to a 
30 day supply of preferred medications, the member is responsible for up to $45. For a 31–90 day 
supply of preferred medications, the member is responsible for up to $90. For up to a 30 day supply 
of non-preferred medications, the member is responsible for up to $75. For a 31–90 day supply of 
non-preferred medications, the member is responsible for up to $150. 

The member is responsible for specialty medications based on the day supply the generic specialty 
medication copay is $10 for a 30 day supply and $25 for 31-90 day supply. The preferred specialty 
medication copay is $100 copayment up to a 30-day supply, $200 copayment for a 31-60 day 
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supply, and $300 for a 61-90 day supply. The non-preferred Specialty medications copays is $200 up 
to a 30 day supply, $400 for a 31-60 day supply, $600 for a 61-90 day supply. 

Medications listed on the HealthChoice Preventive Medication List bypass any pharmacy 
deductibles and any medications mandated as preventive by the Affordable Care Act (ACA) are 
available for members at $0 copayment. There is an annual $2,500/individual or $4,000/family 
MOOP (Note: our records show at implementation the MOOP applies to all drugs). In addition, 
certain prescription medications for smoking cessation are available at a $0 copayment. 

High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) has a combined medical and pharmacy deductible of $1,750 
for an individual and $3,500 for a family and a MOOP of $6,000 for an individual and $12,000 for a 
family. Once the deductible is met for the HDHP, the plan functions the same as the other 
pharmacy plans outlined above. Additionally, medications on the HealthChoice Preventive 
Medication list bypass the HDHP deductible and tobacco cessation products and ACA mandated 
preventive medications are available for $0 copayment. 

For purchases made at non-network pharmacies, the member is responsible for 50% of the cost of 
the medication for preferred medications, and 75% of the cost of the medication for non-preferred 
medications at the contracted rate plus dispensing fee. 

If a brand-name medication is chosen when a generic is available, the member is responsible for 
the difference in cost between the brand-name medication and the generic, in addition to the 
applicable copayment. 

Medicare Supplement Health Plans 

HealthChoice provides high option and low option Medicare supplement benefit plans to retired 
Medicare-eligible participants and their dependents. These supplements are based upon a modified 
Plan G level of benefits and include a pharmacy prescription program, preventive care benefits, 
out-of-country benefits, and an at-home recovery benefit. 

This coverage provides for reimbursement of Medicare-eligible expenses which may not be fully 
reimbursed by or which exceed the amount allowed by Medicare. Medicare Part A expenses are 
generally reimbursed at 100% of eligible Medicare expenses not reimbursed by Medicare. The 
Medicare Part A deductible is also fully reimbursed by HealthChoice. Medicare Part B expenses are 
generally reimbursed at 20% of eligible Medicare expenses not reimbursed by Medicare. 

Medicare Part D Pharmacy Benefits 

HealthChoice High and Low Medicare Supplement Option Plans with or without Part D have a 
MOOP amount of $5,100. The Plans pay 100% of prescription Part D medications after this $5,100 is 
reached. 

• HealthChoice Supplemental High Option with Part D is a 4-tier copayment structure and has a
$100 pharmacy deductible.

• HealthChoice Supplemental High Option without Part D follows the same copayment structure
as the HealthChoice High Option.
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• HealthChoice Supplemental Low with or without Part D has the following four stages:

– Stage 1 (Deductible stage): member pays the full cost of medications until the annual
deductible of $415 is met.

– Stage 2 (Initial Coverage stage): member pays their cost share until the year-to-date “total
drug costs” reaches $3820. Member pays 25% ($846.25) and HealthChoice pays 75%
($2,558.75).

– Stage 3 (Coverage Gap): the member pays 100% of the prescription drug cost until the
MOOP reaches $5,100. During this stage, the member gets a discounted rate of 37% of the
cost on generics and 25% of the cost of brand-name medications.

– Stage 4 (Catastrophic coverage): HealthChoice pays 100% of prescription drug costs upon
reaching MOOP of $5,100.

If a brand-name medication is chosen when a generic is available, the member is responsible for 
the difference in cost between the brand-name medication and the generic, in addition to the 
applicable copayment. 

HealthChoice Dental Plan 

Allowed expenses for HealthChoice dental benefits are reimbursed at a percentage ranging from 
60% to 100%, based on the class of the allowed expense, when using Network providers. The same 
services when using a non-Network provider are reimbursed at a percentage ranging from 50% to 
100%. There is a $25 deductible ($75 per family) when using either Network or non-Network 
providers. There is a calendar year maximum dental benefit of $2,500 per covered person. 

Orthodontic benefits are covered at 50% of allowable amounts for members under age 19, or 
members ages 19 and older with temporomandibular joint dysfunction. There is no calendar year 
deductible or lifetime maximum benefit; however, a 12-month waiting period applies to all 
orthodontic benefits except for those members being treated for TMD. 

Life Plan 

HealthChoice basic life benefits of $20,000 are provided to active state employees and available to 
active education, and local government employees whose employer chooses to participate in the 
HealthChoice Life Insurance Program. In addition to the basic life benefit of $20,000, participants 
may elect additional coverage in increments of $20,000 up to $500,000. Additional dependent life 
coverage is also available under three separate plans. The low option plan offers dependent life 
coverage of $6,000 for spouses and $3,000 for children. The standard option plan offers dependent 
life coverage of $10,000 for spouses and $5,000 for children. The premier option offers dependent 
life coverage of $20,000 for spouses and $10,000 for children. 

Retirees may elect to retain the full coverage for basic life benefits held at the time of termination 
of employment. Coverage thereafter may be decreased in $5,000 increments to a minimum of 
$5,000 or totally terminated. Prior to July 1, 2002, no more than $15,000 of basic life insurance 
could be retained after termination of employment. The retiree may retain dependent life coverage 
in force on eligible dependents in $500 increments. 
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Disability Income Protection Plan 

HealthChoice disability income benefits are based on the length of employment, base salary limited 
by a maximum allowable salary, and length of disability. There is a 30-day qualifying period for 
short-term disability. Long-term disability becomes effective 180 days after disablement. Income 
from other sources occurring due to the disability will reduce the HealthChoice disability benefit 
amount to be paid. The duration of the long-term benefit is determined based upon the age and 
length of employment of the participant at the time the disability occurs. 

HMO DMO Coverage and Benefits 

Health benefits and dental benefits are provided directly by the HMOs and DMOs for all 
participants who elect such coverage. For each participant who elects HMO or DMO coverage, EGID 
collects and pays the premiums to each HMO or DMO carrier. The amounts paid by EGID to each 
HMO or DMO are in accordance with their respective contracts. Benefits are the responsibility of 
each HMO or DMO carrier and are subject to the provisions defined in their insurance policies. EGID 
has no liability for health benefits or dental benefits of participants who elect HMO or DMO 
coverage; therefore, activity related to HMO, DMO, and vision benefits are not reflected in the 
basic financial statements of EGID. 

Claims Processing 

All benefits for HealthChoice are processed and paid by third-party administrators (TPAs). The fees 
incurred by EGID for services performed by the TPAs totaled approximately $30,439,000 and 
$30,509,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. TPA fees are included 
in administrative expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Accounting

EGID’s basic financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles as they apply to governmental units. As an enterprise fund, EGID presents
financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources and
disclosure of contingent amounts at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates its
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors,
including the current economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under
the circumstances. EGID adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances
dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could
differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those estimates resulting from continuing
changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the basic financial statements in future
periods.
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(c) Investments and Investment Income

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted prices with changes in fair value included in
the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. If quoted prices are not
available from active exchanges for identical instruments, then fair values are estimated using
quoted prices from less active markets, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or by
pricing models utilizing other significant observable inputs. Investments in external investment
pools, such as commingled funds, are stated at net asset value (NAV), which approximates fair
value of the commingled fund at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

EGID records investment purchases and sales based upon the trade date. Therefore, EGID records
either receivables or payables for unsettled sales or purchases, respectively. Such transactions are
usually settled within a few days after the trade date.

Realized gains and losses are determined on the average-cost method. The calculation of realized
gains and losses is independent of the calculation of the change in net unrealized gains and losses.
Realized gains and losses on investments that had been held in more than one year and sold in the
current year may have been recognized as unrealized gains and losses in prior years.

Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

(d) Office Equipment

Office equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the equipment, which range from 5 to 10 years. The capitalization threshold for
office equipment is $2,500, and any purchases of equipment costing less than the threshold are
expensed when purchased.

(e) Reserves

EGID establishes HealthChoice health and dental and life reserves based on the ultimate estimated
cost of settling claims that have been reported but not settled, and of claims that have been
incurred but not yet reported. Reserves for life are classified as current or noncurrent liabilities.
HealthChoice disability reserves are also established based on the estimated ultimate cost of
settling claims of participants currently receiving benefits and for disability claims incurred but not
yet reported to EGID. Long-term disability reserves are carried at the present value of expected
future benefits. The reserves are determined using EGID’s historical benefit payment experience.
These estimates are based on data available at the time of estimate and are reviewed by EGID’s
independent consulting actuaries. The health, dental, and life reserves and the disability reserves
include liabilities for claim processing expenses associated with paying claims, which have been
incurred, but not yet paid. The length of time for which costs must be estimated depends on the
coverage involved.

Although reserves reflect EGID’s best estimates of the incurred claims to be paid, due to the
complex nature of the factors involved in the calculation, the actual results may be more or less
than the estimate. The claim reserves are recomputed on a periodic basis using actuarial and
statistical techniques, which consider the effects of general economic conditions, such as inflation,
and other factors of past experience, such as changes in participant counts. Adjustments to claim
reserves are recorded in the periods in which they are made. Claims must be filed no later than the
last day of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the loss is sustained
unless an extenuating circumstance can be shown to exist.
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Premium deficiency reserves are required to be recorded when the anticipated costs of settling 
claims plus policy maintenance costs for the following fiscal year are in excess of the anticipated 
premium receipts and investment income for the following fiscal year. 

(f) Net Position

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, EGID has no legally required minimum net position. However,
EGID has elected to implement the Oklahoma Employees Insurance Benefits Board (OEIBB) policy
which recommends the benchmark for minimum net position be based upon the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) Managed Care Organizations Risk Based Capital
Formula for the Health and Dental program, and the NAIC Life/Health Risk Based Capital Formula
for the Life and Disability programs. The minimum net position benchmark at December 31, 2021
and 2020 is approximately $194,365,000 and $181,159,000, respectively.

The NAIC Risk Based Capital Formulas were selected as the basis for determining minimum net
position primarily due to the following factors:

• Degree and nature of the risks undertaken
• Size of EGID
• Degree of conservatism inherent in the premium rates
• Degree of safety desired

The primary risks that would threaten EGID’s solvency include the following: 

• The risk that claims incurred will exceed premiums collected
• The risk of default or decline in value of EGID’s assets
• The risk of large monetary judgments stemming from possible lawsuits against EGID

A comparison of the minimum net position benchmark and unrestricted net position at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 as reported in the basic financial statements is as follows (in 
thousands): 

2021 Total

Minimum net position 194,365$  
Unrestricted net position 336,711    

2020 Total

Minimum net position 181,159$  
Unrestricted net position 381,096    

As part of the rate setting process, EGID considers total net position in comparison with the 
minimum net position benchmark in setting rates toward achieving the minimum net position 
benchmark. Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Section 1321C provides that EGID may adjust rates 
mid-year if the need is substantiated by an actuarial determination. Consistent with prior years, 
EGID does not anticipate the need for a mid-year rate adjustment for 2022. 
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(g) Premiums

Premiums are recognized in the period when the insurance coverage is provided. Premiums are due
monthly from the employers or participants based on the rates adopted by EGID.

(h) Medicare Part D Subsidies

As a Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plan (PDP), EGID receives a monthly payment from
Medicare. The effect of these payments is to subsidize premiums for the individuals enrolled in the
PDP since they pay a reduced premium rate. This amount is approximately $1,176,000 and
$3,498,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is included in
premium revenue within the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Additionally, Medicare pays EGID a catastrophic reinsurance subsidy as a cost reimbursement for
80% of the claim costs incurred by individuals in excess of the individual annual out-of-pocket
maximum. A settlement is made based on actual cost experience subsequent to the end of the
year. EGID recorded approximately $36,074,000 and $37,802,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is included as an offset to incurred claims expense
within the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

(i) Pharmacy Rebate

Effective January 1, 1999, under EGID’s agreement with its pharmacy benefit manager, EGID
receives a guaranteed rebate for each non-Medicare Part D prescription. Effective January 1, 2006,
EGID also receives a specified percentage of manufacturers’ rebates received by the pharmacy
benefit manager related to Medicare Part D prescriptions. This amount is approximately
$141,569,000 and $130,757,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
and is included as an offset to incurred claims expense within the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position.

(j) Risk Adjustment Premiums

Risk adjustment premiums are received from (or paid to) either the self-funded PPO or any HMO
participating under the EGID umbrella based on factors, which are applied to premiums of all non-
Medicare members and dependents during the plan year. The factors are intended to offset any
adverse selection that may occur as a result of younger, healthier members electing coverage in
one plan over another. This amount received by the self-funded PPO (HealthChoice) is
approximately $5,316,000 and $5,705,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, and is included in other operating revenue within the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position.

(k) Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses are primarily related to employees of EGID and professional services,
including fees paid to TPAs to process and pay benefits.

EGID does not record deferred acquisition costs since administrative expenses are primarily
maintenance expenses and not acquisition expenses. EGID maintains a budget; however, it is not a
legally adopted annual budget.
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(l) Income Taxes

EGID obtained its latest determination letter dated March 30, 2005, in which the Internal Revenue
Service stated that income from the exercise of the essential governmental functions of EGID is
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code).

(m) Operating Revenue and Expenses

Balances classified as operating revenue and expenses are those which comprise the EGID’s
principal ongoing operations. Since EGID’s operations are similar to those of any other insurance
company, revenues and expenses generated from insurance activities are considered operating.

(n) Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan (the Plan), and additions to/deductions
from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

(o) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

EGID participates in two separate OPEB plans. For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability/asset,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB
expense, and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

EGID applies GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which provides
guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes and also provides
guidance for apply fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value
measurements.

In accordance with guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures, EGID groups its financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on inputs and assumptions used to
determine the fair value. An asset’s or liability’s classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of significant input to its valuation. The levels are as follows:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.

• Level 2 inputs are other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar securities,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.).

• Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs (including the EGID’s own assumptions used to
determine the fair value of investments).

The carrying amounts reported in the statement of net position are at fair value for investment 
securities. Fair values for debt securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted 
prices are not available from active exchanges for identical instruments, the fair values are estimated 
using quoted prices from less active markets, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or 
by pricing models utilizing other significant observable inputs. The debt securities fair values are 
considered Level 2, except for the debt mutual fund, which is based on a quoted market price and is 
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considered a Level 1. The fair values for equity securities are based on quoted market prices and are 
considered Level 1, with the exception of the commingled fund, which is reported at net asset value 
and thus is not leveled. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.  Money Market Funds are 
regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Company Act of 
1940.  EGID currently utilizes the Dreyfus Treasury Obligations Cash Management fund to hold cash for 
daily operations.  This fund pools monies from institutional investors to purchase short-term Treasury 
bonds and repurchase agreements that meet certain standards set forth by the SEC for credit quality, 
liquidity, and diversification.  The risk ratings for this fund are AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and Aaa-
mf by Moody’s.  The fund is valued at the “cost plus” accrued interest adjusted to a net asset value of 
$1.00. The State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) commingled fund is valued using the net asset value as 
provide by the issuer. The net asset value is based on the fair value of the underlying investments held 
by the fund less its liabilities. The commingled fund invests in domestic equities represented by the 
Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and can be redeemed daily. EGID has no outstanding commitments to the 
commingled fund.  As of December 31, 2021, the commingled fund totaled $134,397,000  At December 
31, 2021, level 1 investments totaled approximately $36,211,000 and level 2 investments totaled 
approximately $158,735,000. 

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes amounts on deposit with the Office of State Treasurer (State Treasurer) in a pooled
account, which is required by the Oklahoma Statutes to be insured or collateralized. The amount of
collateral securities required to be pledged to secure public deposits is established by rules and
regulations promulgated by the State Treasurer. In accordance with the State Treasurer’s policies, the
market value of collateral securities to be pledged by financial institutions through the State Treasurer’s
Office must be 110% of the carrying value of the amount on deposit, less any federal insurance
coverage.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, cash totaling approximately $13,323,000 and $17,353,000,
respectively, was deposited with and collateralized by the official bond of the State Treasurer of
Oklahoma.

The carrying amount and bank balance of the cash equivalents totaled approximately $74,325,000 and
$117,659,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and consists of an investment in a mutual
fund composed of short-term investments with an original maturity date of three months or less, which
are readily convertible into cash. The current duration of the underlying investments in the money
market mutual fund is approximately 50 days.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, EGID’s deposits may not
be returned or EGID may not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside
party. EGID’s cash and cash equivalents include deposits that are insured, registered, or for which the
securities are held by a custodian in EGID’s name.

5. INVESTMENTS

EGID’s investment policy is predicated on a multiple manager structure to provide the benefits of more
than one manager’s special skills and a diversity of investment styles. Upon recommendation of the
OEIBB, external managers are appointed to assume the investment management function. The
managers, within guidelines determined by EGID’s Board, have full discretion to buy and sell
investment assets of EGID. Authorized investments are defined in Title 36 of the Oklahoma Statutes, as



- 29 -

amended, and EGID’s investment policy, and include U.S. government obligations, state and district 
obligations, corporate obligations, mortgage-backed and assets-backed debt securities, and preferred 
and common stock. All investments held by EGID are in compliance with statutes and the investment 
policy. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, EGID had the following investments: 

Types of Investments Fair Values Duration (1) Fair Values Duration (1)

Debt securities:
  Asset-backed securities(2) 10,588,146$    2.42     4,989,340$      1.70     
  U.S Agencies 5,760,360         5.79     7,318,110         2.66     
  Corporate 67,198,933      5.39     70,331,456      6.04     
  Mortgages 16,763,438      3.41     14,548,686      3.41     
  Collateralized mortgage obligations(2) 1,019,486         2.82     1,291,663         1.29     
  U.S. Treasuries 49,170,551      6.51     57,754,541      6.51     
  Municipals 468,622            6.00     430,003            6.00     
  Collateralized mortgage-backed 
    securities (CMBS)(2) 7,765,601         2.85     7,315,429         3.88     
  Certificates of Deposit (CDs) - 1,044,919         2.62     

           Total debt securities 158,735,137    165,024,147    

Equities—domestic 170,608,329    129,958,478    

Total investments 329,343,466$  294,982,625$  

2021 2020

(1) Interest rate risk is estimated using effective duration (in years).
(2) These include investments highly sensitive to interest rate changes.
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(a) Credit Risk

The credit risk profile as listed by Moody’s for debt securities and money market mutual funds at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

AAA AA/A BAA/BA CCC Not Rated Total

Debt securi ties :
  Asset-backed
    securi ties 9,029,187$   858,625$      700,334$      $          $              10,588,146$   
  Agencies 5,760,360     5,760,360       
  Corporate 407,617        18,865,809   47,504,456   420,882   169              67,198,933     
  Mortgages 16,763,438   16,763,438     
  Col latera l i zed
    mortgage
    obl igations 871,140        148,346       1,019,486       

U.S. Treasuries 49,170,551   49,170,551     
  Municipa ls 366,645        101,977        468,622          
  CMBS 7,331,074     176,510        258,017       7,765,601       
  CDs

Tota l  debt
  securi ties 89,333,367$ 20,267,589$ 48,306,767$ 420,882$ 406,532$     158,735,137$ 

2021

AAA AA/A BAA/BA CCC Not Rated Total

Debt securi ties :
  Asset-backed
    securi ties 3,805,575$   468,210$      423,730$      $          291,825$     4,989,340$     
  Agencies 7,318,110     7,318,110       
  Corporate 124,436        25,202,901   41,936,819   311,289   2,756,011    70,331,456     
  Mortgages 14,317,573   231,113        14,548,686     
  Col latera l i zed
    mortgage
    obl igations 1,169,365     122,298       1,291,663       

U.S. Treasuries 57,754,541   57,754,541     
  Municipa ls 373,389        56,614          430,003          
  CMBS 6,463,166     15,701          15,645          820,917       7,315,429       
  CDs 1,044,919     1,044,919       

Tota l  debt
  securi ties 91,997,685$ 26,291,314$ 42,432,808$ 311,289$ 3,991,051$  165,024,147$ 

2020

Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
The Board’s investment policy authorizes EGID to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies 
and instrumentalities, bankers’ acceptances rated AA or better, commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 
and A-2 or P-2, fixed income investments rated investment grade and stocks of companies with a 
minimum capitalization of $50,000,000, and other investments of similar risk. 

Investments in “restricted securities,” including fixed income securities, preferred stock, common 
stock, or any common stock acquired upon conversion thereof are prohibited. “Restricted 
securities” are securities, which have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and are 
subject to restrictions on sale. Engagements in short sales, purchases on margin, or investments in 
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commodities or transactions of a similar or speculative nature are prohibited. EGID is in compliance 
with its investment policy for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

(b) Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
EGID will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the
possession of an outside party. The current master custodian has been approved by EGID’s Board.
EGID’s investments include investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities
are held by a custodian in EGID’s name. They may also include investments held for the custodian
by the Federal Reserve Bank or Depository Trust Corporation in EGID’s name.

(c) Concentration of Credit Risk

An increased risk of loss occurs as more investments are acquired from one issuer. EGID’s policy
states investments in one issuer shall not exceed 2.5% of the fair value of each manager’s assets,
except for obligations of the U.S. government or of any state of the U.S. The policy also restricts
investments in the common stock of any U.S. corporation to no more than 5% of each manager’s
assets valued at the lower of cost or market value, except where the manager’s benchmark holds
more than 5% in a single issue or with prior consent of EGID’s Board.

(d) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Fixed income investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of
adverse interest rate changes.

(e) Investment Income

Net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 comprises the following:

2021 2020

Fixed income securities 4,627,618$    4,392,935$    
Equity securities 377,302          179,852          
Realized gains 11,351,603    6,453,560      
Unrealized gain 17,309,926    19,306,489    
Other investment gain (loss) (67) 17,187 
Less investment expenses (810,016) (671,366) 

Net investment income 32,856,366$ 29,678,657$ 
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6. OFFICE EQUIPMENT

The changes in office equipment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

Office equipment, at cost:
  Balance, beginning of year 3,423,779$ 3,935,637$ 
    Additions 1,615,727    
    Retirements (173,147) (511,858) 

           Balance, end of year 4,866,359 3,423,779 

Accumulated depreciation:
  Balance, beginning of year 3,395,071    3,561,904    
    Depreciation expense 92,412          345,025       
    Retirements (173,148) (511,858) 

           Balance, end of year 3,314,335 3,395,071 

Office equipment—net 1,552,024$ 28,708$       

7. HEALTH AND DENTAL AND LIFE RESERVES

The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended
December 31, 2021 (in thousands):

Health
and Dental Life Total

Reserves, beginning of year 104,334$   22,560$ 126,894$   
Incurred claims expense provisions for 
  insured events of the current year 995,792     40,620    1,036,412 
Changes in provisions for insured events of 
  prior years 8,068 2,814 10,882 

           Total incurred 1,003,860 43,434 1,047,294 

Less payments:
  Claims expense insured events of the current
    year 922,305     33,911    956,216     
  Claims expense insured events of prior years 94,050 10,232 104,282 

           Total paid 1,016,355 44,143 1,060,498 

  Reserves, end of year 91,839$     21,851$ 113,690$   

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for claims increased by 
approximately $10,882,000 in the year ended December 31, 2021 due to unfavorable health and dental 
claims experience along with unfavorable life claims experience. 



- 33 -

The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended 
December 31, 2020 (in thousands): 

Health
and Dental Life Total

Reserves, beginning of year 105,150$   14,431$ 119,581$   
Incurred claims expense provisions for 
  insured events of the current year 950,763     41,484    992,247     
Changes in provisions for insured events of 
  prior years (2,751) 5,861 3,110 

           Total incurred 948,012 47,345 995,357 

Less payments:
  Claims expense insured events of the current
    year 850,781     33,911    884,692     
  Claims expense insured events of prior years 98,047 5,305 103,352 

           Total paid 948,828 39,216 988,044 

  Reserves, end of year 104,334$   22,560$ 126,894$   

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for claims increased by 
approximately $3,110,000 in the year ended December 31, 2020, due primarily to favorable health and 
dental claims experience which offset the unfavorable life claims experience. 

Health and Dental Reserving Methodology 

Completion Factor Approach: This method assumes that the historical claim patterns will be an 
accurate representation of unpaid claim liabilities. An estimate of the unpaid claims is calculated by 
subtracting period-to-date paid claims from an estimate of the ultimate “complete” payment for all 
incurred claims in the period. Completion factors are calculated which “complete” the current period-
to-date payment totals for each incurred month to estimate the ultimate expected payout. 

There is no expected development on reported claims in the health and dental coverage. Claim 
frequency is determined by totaling the number of unique claim numbers during the period as each 
unique claim number represents a claim event for an individual claimant. 

Life Reserving Methodology 

Life claim reserves are projected based on actual paid claims through March 2021 and pending life 
claims as of March 31, 2021 plus a margin for adverse deviation. Life has substantially all claims settled 
and paid in less than one year. 
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8. DISABILITY RESERVES

The following represents changes in the disability reserves during the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020 (in thousands):

2021 2020

Reserves, beginning of year 8,052$    9,410$    

Incurred claims:
  Provisions for insured events of the current year 3,540      3,860      
  Changes in provisions for insured events of prior years (2,033) (2,620) 

           Total incurred 1,507 1,240 

Payments:
  Claims attributable to insured events of the current year 553          864          
  Claims attributable to insured events of prior years 1,812 1,734 

           Total paid 2,365 2,598 

Reserves, end of year 7,194$    8,052$    

EGID estimates current and noncurrent reserves for disability reserves based on historical claim 
experience. 

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for disability reserves 
decreased by approximately $2.0 million and $2.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively, due primarily to favorable claims development. 

The following is a brief description of the significant assumptions used for disability reserves: 

• Actual claim experience for the group, based upon claim lag studies, was used for males and
females for short-term disability.

• The 2012 Group Long-term Disability Valuation Table was used.

• The discount rate was 3.5% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

9. PREMIUM DEFICIENCY RESERVE

A premium deficiency reserve is recorded at the end of the year when the anticipated costs of settling
claims plus policy maintenance costs for the following year are in excess of the anticipated premium
receipts and investment income for the following year. Anticipated premium receipts are projected
based on the premium rates adopted by EGID for the following plan year and current enrollment levels.
Incurred claims for subsequent years are projected based on current year incurred claims, increased for
anticipated inflation rates and benefit design changes. EGID does not have the intention to change the
adopted premium rates after the fiscal year has begun. At December 31, 2021, a premium deficiency
liability of approximately $45.0 million was recorded for the health and dental plans, a premium
deficiency liability of approximately $3.7 million was recorded for the life plan and a $138 thousand
premium deficiency liability was booked for the disability plan.  At December 31, 2020, a premium
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deficiency liability of approximately $1.7 million was recorded for the life plan and a $482 thousand 
premium deficiency liability was booked for the disability plan. No premium deficiency was necessary 
for the health and dental plans 

10. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN

(a) Plan Description

EGID contributes to the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by the Oklahoma Public
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. The benefit provisions are established and may be amended by
the legislature of the State of Oklahoma. Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 901-943, as
amended, assigns the authority for management and operation of the Plan to the Board of Trustees
of OPERS. OPERS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes basic financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Plan. That annual report may be
obtained by writing to OPERS, P.O. Box 53007, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73152 or at
www.opers.ok.gov/.

(b) Benefits Provided

Members qualify for full retirement benefits at their specified normal retirement age or, for any
person who became a member prior to July 1, 1992, when the sum of the member’s age and years
of credited service equals or exceeds 80 (Rule of 80), and for any person who became a member
after June 30, 1992, when the member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 90
(Rule of 90).

Normal retirement date is further qualified to require that all members employed on or after
January 1, 1983 must have six or more years of full-time equivalent employment with a
participating employer before being eligible to receive benefits. Credited service is the sum of
participating and prior service. Prior service includes nonparticipating service before January 1,
1975, or the entry date of the employer and active wartime military service.

A member with a minimum of ten years of participating service may elect early retirement with
reduced benefits beginning at age 55 if the participant became a member prior to November 1,
2011, or age 60 if the participant became a member on or after November 1, 2011.

Disability retirement benefits are available for members having eight years of credited service
whose disability status has been certified as being within one year of the last day on the job by the
Social Security Administration. Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as
retirement benefits, but are payable immediately without an actuarial reduction.

http://www.opers.ok.gov/
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(c) Contributions

Plan members and EGID are required to contribute at a rate set by statute. The contribution
requirements of plan members and EGID are established and may be amended by the legislature of
the State of Oklahoma. The contribution rate for EGID and plan members is as follows:

Employee Rate Employer Rate

January 1, 2021–December 31, 2021 3.50 %   16.50 % 
January 1, 2020–December 31, 2020 3.50     16.50  
January 1, 2019–December 31, 2019 3.50     16.50  
January 1, 2018–December 31, 2018 3.50     16.50  

EGID’s contributions to the Retirement Plan for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were 
approximately $751,000 and $836,000, respectively, and were equal to EGID’s required 
contributions for the year. 

(d) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, EGID reported an asset of approximately $3.7 million and a
liability of $2.8 million, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was based on the employer contributing entity’s percentage of
the total employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, EGID’s proportion was approximately .273% and 0.315%, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, EGID recognized a decrease to expense of
approximately $517 thousand and an increase to expense of approximately $1.7 million,
respectively, to account for pension activity. At December 31, 2021, EGID reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience -$  92,271$        
Changes of assumptions 270,404       
Net difference between projected and actual investment
  earnings on pension plan investments 4,092,373    
EGID contributions subsequent to the measurement date 324,945 

595,349$     4,184,644$  
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At December 31, 2020, EGID reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience -$            15,369$ 
Changes of assumptions 1,004,611    
Net difference between projected and actual investment
  earnings on pension plan investments 334,200       
EGID contributions subsequent to the measurement date 380,805 

1,719,616$ 15,369$ 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from EGID contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date of $324,945 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 
in the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Employees Group
Insurance Division

Year ended December 31:
  2022 (810,979)$            
  2023 (973,586)               
  2024 (1,003,134)           
  2025 (1,126,541) 

Total (3,914,240)$         

(e) Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 3.25% to 9.25%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.5% net of investment expense,

  including price inflation

Mortality rates – In 2020, Pub-2010 Below Media, General Membership Active/Retiree Healthy 
Mortality Table with base rates projected to 2030 using Scale MP-2019. Male rates are unadjusted, 
and female rate are set forward two years. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of the most 
recent actuarial experience study, which covered the three-year period ended June 30, 2019. The 
experience study report is dated May 13, 2020. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. large cap equity 34.0 %        4.7 %       
U.S. small cap equity 6.0            5.8         
Int’s Developed Equity 23.0          6.5         
Emerging Market Equity 5.0            8.5         
Core Fixed Income 25.0          0.5         
Long Term Treasuries 3.5            0.0         
US TIPS 3.5 0.3 

Total 100.0 % 

(f) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2021 and June 30,2020 was
6.5%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members and the employers will be made at the current contribution rate as set out in
state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate determined
does not use a municipal bond rate.

(g) Sensitivity of EGID’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 6.50% for both 2021 and 2020, as well as what EGID’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

EGID’s proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) (340,686)$   (3,669,688)$  (6,483,481)$  

2021
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1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

EGID’s proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) 6,620,953$ 2,812,537$ (405,524)$ 

2020

(h) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
OPERS financial report.

11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

(a) General Description of the Other Postemployment Benefits

EGID provides retirees with two other postemployment benefits upon retirement as discussed
below:

The Employees Group Insurance Division (EGID), as a multi-line insurance provider, allows for
retirees that are not yet eligible for Medicare benefits to participate in the insurance plans available
to active employees. Current and retired employees participate in the same plans with blended
premium rates creating an implicit rate subsidy for the retirees in the plan. This plan is not
administered through a trust, and as a result, there are no assets to net against the total liability.
The plan functions as a cost-sharing multi-employer plan.

As mandated by statute, Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) provides an OPEB
benefit to retirees should a retiree make such an election at retirement to continue health
coverage through the state’s provider, EGID. This benefit is for a fixed amount of $105 and the
contribution is included in the employer pension contribution. This plan is a cost-sharing multi-
employer plan. The information for obtaining the separately issued independent audit report, a
summary of significant accounting policies of the pension plan and the statutory authority under
which OPEB benefits are required to be paid are discussed in Note 10(a).126

(b) Employees Covered

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Employees Group Public Employees
Insurance Division Retirement System

Active employees 33,115   31,711   
Terminated, vested, inactive participants 6,802 6,133 

Total 39,917 37,844 

as of July 1, 2020
Plans Outside of Trusts OPEB Trust Funds

as of June 30, 2021

(c) OPEB Liability/Asset

At December 31, 2021, EGID reported a liability of approximately $486,000 (a proportionate share
of .342%) for the EGID plan. For the OPERS plan, an asset of approximately $376,000 (a
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proportionate share of .273%) is reported. These amounts reflect EGID’s proportionate share of the 
liability (asset) of the total plans. 

The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuations was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise 
specified. The plan valuation dates are as of June 30, 2021 and July 1, 2021 for EGID and OPERS, 
respectively. 

Employees Group Public Employees
Insurance Division Retirement System

Inflation 0% 2.50 %  
Salary increases 3.0% to 8.0% 3.5% to 9.25%
Discount rate 2.21% 6.50 %  
Healthcare cost trend 5.30% decreasing to 5.00% NA
Retiree’s share of benefit-related costs 0% 0%

(d) Discount Rates

Employees Group Insurance Division: The discount rate was determined using the Bond Buyer GO
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index.

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System: The discount rate is determined by the expected 
rate of return on assets as referenced in Note 10(f). 

(e) Mortality Rates

Employees Group Insurance Division: Mortality rates were based on Pub-2010 Public Retirement
Plans General Mortality Table weighted by Headcount projected by MP-2020 as of July1, 2020.

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System: OPERS uses Pub-2010 Below Mean, General
Membership Active/Retiree Healthy Mortality Table with base rates projected to 2030 using Scale
MP-2019. Male rate are unadjusted, and female rates are set forward two years.

(f) Actuarial Assumptions

Employees Group Insurance Division: The EGID implicit rate subsidy valuation report dated
June 30, 2021, is based on a measured date of July 1, 2020, with a measurement period of July 1,
2019, to July 1, 2020.

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System: The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,
2021, valuation report measured on the same date by OPERS are based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which covers the three-year period ending June 30, 2019. The
experience study report is dated May 13, 2021.

(g) Changes in Assumptions and Other Inputs

Employees Group Insurance Division: The discount rate to calculate liabilities was changed from
3.51% as of July 1, 2019 to 2.21% as of July 1, 2020. These discount rates use the Bond Buyer GO
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index as of those applicable dates.

The mortality assumption used to calculate liabilities was changed from the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans General Mortality Table weighted by Headcount projected by MP-2019 as of 
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July 1, 2019 to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans General Mortality Table weighted by 
Headcount projected by MP-2020 as of July 1, 2020. 

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System: Investment return steady at 6.50% for 2021 and 
2020; price inflation was decreased from 2.75% to 2.50%; payroll growth was decreased from 
3.50% to 3.25%; mortality assumption was changed to reflect recent mortality experience; salary 
scale assumptions, withdrawal rates, disability rates, and retirement rates were revised. 

(h) Sensitivity of EGID’s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents EGID’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability, as well as what the
projected OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Employees Group Insurance Division

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)

Total OPEB liability 518,288$ 485,605$ 454,844$ 

2021

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (282,655)$ (375,899)$ (455,820)$ 

2021

Employees Group Insurance Division 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.51%) (3.51%) (4.51%)

Total OPEB liability 517,374$ 484,694$ 454,183$ 

2020

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (37,629)$ (147,798)$ (242,216)$ 

2020

(i) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate

The following presents EGID’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability at June 30, 2021,
calculated using the healthcare trend rate, as well as what the trend rate increasing or decreasing
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by 1-percentage-point. Of the OPEB plans, only the EGID implicit rate subsidy is affected by the 
healthcare trend rate. 

Employees Group Insurance Division 

1% Decrease TrendRate 1% Increase
(4.30%-4.00%) (5.30%–5.00%) (6.30%–6.00%)

Total OPEB liability 437,290$ 485,605$ 542,447$ 

2021

Employees Group Insurance Division 

1% Decrease TrendRate 1% Increase
(6.10%–3.60%) (7.10%–4.60%) (8.10%–5.60%)

Total OPEB liability 443,614$ 484,694$ 532,514$ 

2020

(j) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2021, EGID recognized OPEB expense of $1,377 for the EGID plan
and a net to expense of $58,284 for the OPERS plan. The following table illustrates the deferred
inflows and outflows as of December 31, 2021, based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement 75:

Employees Group Public Employees
Insurance Division Retirement System Total

Deferred outflows:
  Changes of assumptions
    or other inputs 33,958$ 33,419$    67,377$    
  Subsequent contributions 17,690 11,088 28,778 

Total deferred outflows 51,648$ 44,507$    96,155$    

Deferred inflows:
  Changes of assumptions
    or other inputs 28,304$ $            28,304$    
  Differences between expected
    and actual experience 4,303      121,851    126,154    
  Differences between projected
    and actual investment earnings 107,032 107,032 

Total deferred inflows 32,607$ 228,883$ 261,490$ 

2021
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Employees Group Public Employees
Insurance Division Retirement System Total

Deferred outflows:
  Changes of assumptions
    or other inputs -       $      74,654$    74,654$    
  Subsequent contributions 34,669 12,995 47,664 

Total deferred outflows 34,669$ 87,649$    122,318$ 

Deferred inflows:
  Changes of assumptions
    or other inputs 46,557$ -       $        46,557$    
  Differences between expected
    and actual experience 4,337      125,138    129,475    
  Differences between projected
    and actual investment earnings -        

Total deferred inflows 50,894$ 125,138$ 176,032$ 

2020

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are 
amortized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Employees Group Public Employees
Insurance Division Retirement System

Year ended June 30:
  2022 (8,650)$   (51,682)$                 
  2023 (4,835)      (48,225) 
  2024 (654)         (45,348) 
  2025 5,612       (42,279) 
  2026 5,612       (7,930) 
  Total thereafter 4,266 

Total 1,351$     (195,464)$              

12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The State offers to its own employees, state agency employees, and other duly constituted authority or
instrumentality employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Code
Section 457 and Chapter 45 of Title 74, Oklahoma Statutes. The Oklahoma State Employees Deferred
Compensation Plan (SoonerSave) is a voluntary plan that allows participants to defer a portion of their
salary into SoonerSave. Participation allows a person to shelter the portion of their salary that they
defer from current federal and state income tax. Taxes on the interest or investment gains on this
money, while in SoonerSave, are also deferred. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or approved unforeseeable emergency.

Under SoonerSave, the untaxed deferred amounts are invested as directed by the participant among
various investment options. Effective January 1, 1998, a Trust and Trust Fund covering SoonerSave
assets was established pursuant to federal legislation enacted in 1996, requiring public employers to
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establish such trusts for plans meeting the requirements of Section 457 of the Code. Under terms of the 
Trust, the corpus or income of the Trust Fund may be used only for the exclusive benefit of SoonerSave 
participants and their beneficiaries. Further information may be obtained from the Oklahoma State 
Employees Deferred Compensation Plan audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
EGID believes it has no liabilities with respect to SoonerSave. 

13. OPERATING LEASES

EGID has agreements for one-year commitments to lease office space and equipment with options to
renew for additional periods. If the leases are renewed in accordance with the options in the
agreements, the future minimum rentals for operating leases as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

2022 309,529$  
2023 160,999 
2024 6,945         
2025 87              

477,560$  

Rent expense for office space and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 
approximately $1,372,000 and $1,037,000, respectively, and is included in administrative expenses in 
the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

14. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

EGID invests in various investment securities. As described in note 5, investment securities are exposed
to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. It is at least reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and such changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of net position.

As described in note 2, the estimates of reserves are determined based on actuarial and statistical
techniques, which consider the effects of general economic conditions, such as inflation, and other
factors of past experience, such as changes in participant counts, all of which are subject to change.
Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near term would be material to the
basic financial statements.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

EGID’s legal counsel has determined that the statute of limitations for claims denied or paid improperly
is three years. Typically, all claims are reported within a 24-month period. Currently, EGID is not aware
of any material claims that were denied or paid improperly that should be reserved for in the basic
financial statements. To the extent such claims exist, EGID may be responsible for payment.

During 2003, the Oklahoma Legislature created the Medical Expense Liability Revolving Fund (the
Fund), which enacted a fee to cover inmate medical costs. By law, EGID is the administrator of the
Fund. Any person convicted of certain offenses is required to pay a fine of $10, which goes into the
Fund. The moneys from the Fund are used when an inmate’s medical costs exceed $6,000 up to a
maximum of $100,000. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Fund has assets and liabilities of
approximately $3,120,000 and $2,790,000, respectively, which are included in cash and other accrued
liabilities in the statements of net position.
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During 1995, the Oklahoma Legislature created the Health Insurance High Risk Pool (the Pool), which 
was designed to provide health insurance for certain state residents who were unable to obtain 
coverage through other insurers. All insurers and reinsurers providing health insurance or reinsurance 
in the state of Oklahoma were required to participate in the Pool. With the exception of EGID, all self-
insured plans were exempted from participation. Participating insurers were assessed periodically. 
Participating insurers were also assessed additional amounts in the Pool experienced adverse claim 
development. In 2014, this law was repealed with an effective date of January 1, 2017. No assessments 
were made in 2020 or 2021. 

In the normal course of operations, there are various legal actions and proceedings pending against 
EGID. In management’s opinion, the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from these legal actions will not 
have a material adverse effect on EGID’s financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. 

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

EGID has evaluated subsequent events from the statement of net position date through the date  the
basic financial statements were issued and determined there are no other items to disclose.

* * * * * *  
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY OF
THE OKLAHOMA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN
LAST 10 JUNE 30 FISCAL YEARS*

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

EGID’s proportion of the net
  pension liability 0.27342 %        0.31525 %      0.32367 %   0.33383 %   0.35235 %      0.34647 %      0.37598 %      0.41129 %   
EGID’s proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) (3,669,688)$  2,812,537$  431,088$   651,102$   1,905,049$ 3,437,815$ 1,352,338$ 754,986$   
EGID’s covered payroll 4,553,275      5,239,847    5,182,203 5,636,532 5,744,376    6,224,406    6,646,436    6,968,066 
EGID’s proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) as a
  percentage of its covered
  payroll (80.59)%            53.68 %           8.31 %          11.55 %        33.16 %          55.23 %          20.35 %          10.83 %        
Plan fiduciary net position as a
  percentage of the total
  pension liability (asset) 100.01            99.26            98.63          97.96          94.28            89.48            96.00            97.60          

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are
presented as the information for prior years is not available.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE
OKLAHOMA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN
LAST 10 DECEMBER 31 FISCAL YEARS*

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 671,954$      836,044$      813,780$      819,732$      947,822$      1,027,027$  1,096,662$  1,149,731$  
Contributions in relation to the
  contractually required contribution (671,954) (836,044) (813,780) (819,732) (947,822) (1,027,027) (1,096,662) (1,149,731) 

-$             -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -       $             

EGID’s covered payroll 4,211,428$  5,239,847$  5,100,309$  5,137,612$  5,744,376$  6,224,406$  6,646,436$  6,968,066$  

Contributions as a percentage of
  covered payroll 15.96 %           15.96 %           15.96 %           18.45 %           16.50 %           16.50 %           16.50 %           16.50 %           

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are presented as
the information for prior years is not available.

.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

1. CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS

The Plan has been amended by House Bill 2630 in 2014, which states that effective November 1, 2015, 
OPERS shall create a defined contribution plan for most people first employed by a participating 
employer. Exemptions from the new defined contribution plan include hazardous duty members and 
district attorneys, assistant district attorneys, and employees of the district attorney’s office. Each 
employer shall send to OPERS the difference between the required employer contribution to OPERS 
and the amount required to match the participating employee’s contributions in the defined 
contribution plan. 

Senate Bill 2120, also enacted in 2014, amends House Bill 2630 to further exempt from the new defined 
contribution plan county elected officials and employees of a county, county hospital, city or town, 
conservation district, circuit engineering district, and any public or private trust in which a county, city, 
or town participates. Senate Bill 2120 also states that employees who participate in the defined 
contribution system are excluded from the $105 healthcare subsidy. 

New employees specifically exempted from the defined contribution plan will participate in the existing 
defined benefit plan. 

2. CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS

There were no changes in assumptions from 2020 to 2021.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY FOR THE EGID PLAN 
LAST 10 JUNE 30 FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018

EGID’s proportion of the OPEB liability 0.34175033% 0.36663690% 0.35113268% 0.33200642%

EGID’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability 485,605$        484,694$        513,362$        493,016$        
EGID’s covered-employee payroll 6,585,434       6,665,067       5,182,203       5,636,532       
EGID’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability as a
  percentage of its covered-employee payroll 7.37 %               7.27 %               9.91 %               8.75 %               

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are
presented as the information for prior years is not available.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB ASSET FOR THE OPERS PLAN 
LAST 10 JUNE 30 FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018

EGID’s proportion of the OPEB asset 0.27342 %         0.315249 %       0.32366873% 0.33382507%

EGID’s proportionate share of the OPEB asset 375,899$        147,798$        125,825$        43,200$          
EGID’s covered-employee payroll 4,211,428       5,239,847       5,182,203       5,636,532       
EGID’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset as a
  percentage of its covered-employee payroll 8.93 %               2.82 %               2.43 %               0.77 %               
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
  OPEB liability 100.11 %           100.03 %           112.11 %           103.94 %           

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are
presented as the information for prior years is not available.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE OPERS PLAN 
LAST 10 DECEMBER 31 FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution 22,931$        27,589$        27,771$        27,974$        
contributions in relation to the contractually required contribut (22,931)        (27,589)        (27,771)        (27,974)        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$          -$  -$  -       $          

EGID’s covered-employee payroll 4,211,428$   5,239,847$   5,100,309$   5,137,612$   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.54 %            0.54 %            0.54 %            0.54 %            

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019
and 2018 are presented as the information for prior years is not available.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DIVISION 
(A Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF TEN-YEAR DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

(1) Earned premiums and
Investment revenues 1,101,299$    1,128,271$    1,125,041$    1,098,161$    1,080,174$    1,024,284$    985,321$   964,101$   940,855$   884,698$   

(2) Adminis trative Expenses 50,114           50,109           49,355           51,121           45,340           48,337           47,667       51,709       41,412       39,492       

(3) Estimated incurred cla ims ,
both pa id and accrued,
end of pol icy year 1,039,952      996,107         1,021,403      1,040,974      1,020,522      1,017,831      1,022,524  935,870     878,842     826,098     

(4) Payments  as  of:
End of pol icy year 956,932         885,556         916,646         905,574         910,454         894,439         902,693     820,319     778,221     727,780     
One year later 993,338         1,018,549      1,027,026      1,006,239      1,006,157      1,018,240  927,284     867,136     816,632     
Two years  later 1,017,716      1,027,954      1,009,713      1,008,712      1,021,953  928,794     869,158     820,175     
Three years  later 1,024,885      1,010,799      1,009,046      1,022,436  929,055     869,506     820,463     
Four years  later 1,011,082      1,009,855      1,022,456  929,189     869,370     820,687     
Five years  later 1,010,739      1,022,576  929,186     869,416     820,855     
Six years  later 1,022,811  929,286     869,426     820,958     
Seven years  later 929,546     869,526     820,958     
Eight years  later 869,651     820,958     
Nine years  later 821,220     

(5) Reestimated incurred cla ims
End of pol icy year 1,039,952      996,107         1,021,403      1,040,974      1,020,522      1,017,831      1,022,524  935,870     878,842     826,098     
One year later 993,338         1,018,549      1,027,026      1,009,302      1,008,556      1,022,400  929,586     869,910     822,212     
Two years  later 1,017,716      1,027,954      1,009,713      1,010,061      1,023,409  929,809     869,772     822,219     
Three years  later 1,024,885      1,010,799      1,009,046      1,023,582  929,925     870,017     821,684     
Four years  later 1,011,082      1,009,855      1,022,456  929,889     869,743     821,682     
Five years  later 1,010,739      1,022,576  929,186     869,700     821,629     
Six years  later 1,022,811  929,286     869,426     821,633     
Seven years  later 929,546     869,526     820,958     
Eight years  later 869,651     820,958     
Nine years  later 821,220     

(6) Decrease in estimated
incurred cla ims  from end of
pol icy year - 2,769 3,687             16,089           9,440             7,092             (287) 6,324 9,191         4,878         

Fiscal and Policy Years Ended



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Members of the Board 
Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Employees Group Insurance Division (A 
Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services and Department of the State of Oklahoma) 
(“EGID”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise EGID’s basic financial statements (“financial statements”), and have issued our 
report thereon dated June 29, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered EGID’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of EGID’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of EGID’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether EGID’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
100 N. Broadway
Suite 3250
Oklahoma City, OK 73102 USA
Tel:  +1 918 477 8800
www.deloitte.com



Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of EGID’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering EGID’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

June 29, 2022 
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